
Committee Agenda

1

AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE WEST
Wednesday, 20th January, 2016
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Area Planning Sub-Committee West, which 
will be held at: 

Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping
on Wednesday, 20th January, 2016
at 7.30 pm .

Glen Chipp
Chief Executive

Democratic Services 
Officer

Rebecca Perrin (Directorate of Governance)
Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel: 
01992 564243

Members:

Councillors Y  Knight (Chairman), A Mitchell (Vice-Chairman), R Bassett, R Butler, D Dorrell, 
R Gadsby, L Hughes, H Kane, S Kane, J Lea, M Sartin, G Shiell, S Stavrou and E Webster

WEBCASTING/FILMING NOTICE

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  The meeting may also be otherwise filmed by 
third parties with the Chairman’s permission.

You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy.

Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber 
public gallery area or otherwise indicate to the Chairman before the start of the 
meeting.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Public Relations Manager 
on 01992 564039.



Area Planning Sub-Committee West Wednesday, 20 January 2016

2

1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  

1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate 
their microphones before speaking. 

2. The Chairman will read the following announcement:

“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
internet (or filmed) and will be capable of repeated viewing (or another use by such 
third parties).

If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast.

This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should move to the upper public gallery.”

2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING 
SUBCOMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 8)

General advice to people attending the meeting is attached.

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

4. MINUTES  (Pages 9 - 24)

To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 18 
November 2015.

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

(Director of Governance) To declare interests in any item on this agenda.

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and 
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted.

In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required.

7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 25 - 68)

(Director of Governance)  To consider the planning applications set out in the attached 
schedule

Background Papers 
(i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the schedule, letters of 



Area Planning Sub-Committee West Wednesday, 20 January 2016

3

representation received regarding the applications which are summarised on the 
schedule.  

(ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of officers inspecting the 
properties listed on the schedule in respect of which consideration is to be given to the 
enforcement of planning control.

8. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS  

Exclusion
To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of business set 
out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as 
amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number

Nil Nil Nil

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting.

Confidential Items Commencement
Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require:

(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 
press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest.

(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 
completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press.

(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 
completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision.

Background Papers
Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the Constitution define 
background papers as being documents relating to the subject matter of the report 
which in the Proper Officer's opinion:

(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 
report is based;  and

(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor.



Area Planning Sub-Committee West Wednesday, 20 January 2016

4

Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item.



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees

Are the meetings open to the public?

Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are 
the public excluded.

When and where is the meeting?

Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front 
page of the agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the 
Subcommittee. 

Can I speak?

If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on 
the day before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of 
the agenda. Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must 
register with Democratic Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning 
Enforcement or legal issues.

Who can speak?

Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), 
the local Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent. 

Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would 
normally withdraw from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the 
meeting on an item and then withdraw. 

Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the 
Sub-Committee before leaving.

What can I say?

You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind 
that you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers 
may clarify matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-
Committee members. 

If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will 
determine the application in your absence.

Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my 
objection?

Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send 
further information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through 
Democratic Services or our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information 
sent to Councillors should be copied to the Planning Officer dealing with your 
application.

http://www.eppingforesdc.gov.uk/


How are the applications considered?

The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they 
will listen to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear 
any speakers’ presentations. 

The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) 
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and 
vote on either the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by 
the Subcommittee. Should the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action 
different to officer recommendation, they are required to give their reasons for doing 
so.

The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or 
Structure Plan Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next 
meeting of the District Development Control Committee.

Further Information?

Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your 
Voice’



Area Planning Subcommittee West 2015-16

Members of the Committee and Wards Represented:

  

Cllr Stavrou
Waltham 

Abbey High 
Beach

Cllr Lea
Waltham 

Abbey North 
East

Cllr Bassett
Lower 

Nazeing

Cllr Shiell
Waltham 

Abbey 
Honey Lane

Cllr Mitchell
Waltham Abbey 

North East

Cllr H Kane
Waltham 

Abbey South 
West

Cllr S Kane
Waltham 

Abbey 
Honey Lane

Cllr Knight
Lower 

Nazeing

Cllr Butler
Waltham Abbey 

Honey Lane

Cllr Dorrell
Waltham Abbey 

Paternoster

Cllr Sartin
Roydon

Cllr Hughes
Broadley 
Common, 

Epping Upland 
and Nazeing

Cllr Gadsby
Waltham Abbey 

South West

Cllr 
Webster
Waltham 

Abbey 
Paternoster

http://haako/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=42




1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MINUTES

Committee: Area Planning Sub-Committee 
West

Date: 18 November 2015 

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 
High Street, Epping

Time: 7.30 - 9.23 pm

Members 
Present:

Y  Knight (Chairman), A Mitchell (Vice-Chairman), D Dorrell, R Gadsby, 
L Hughes, H Kane, S Kane, J Lea, G Shiell and S Stavrou

Other 
Councillors:  

Apologies: R Bassett, R Butler, M Sartin and E Webster

Officers 
Present:

J Godden (Principal Planning Officer (Heritage, Enforcement & 
Landscaping)), R Perrin (Democratic Services Officer) and M Jenkins 
(Democratic Services Officer)

26. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION 

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council’s Protocol for 
Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings.

27. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION 

The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements agreed by the Council, to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission.

28. MINUTES 

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 16 September 
2015 be taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

29. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor R Gadsby 
declared a non-pecuniary personal interest in the following item of the agenda. 
Councillor R Gadsby indicated that she would leave the meeting for the consideration 
and voting thereon:

 EPF/1820/15 New House Farm, Long Street, Waltham Abbey EN9 3TQ



Area Planning Sub-Committee West 18 November 2015

2

(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor R Gadsby 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of 
being an Essex County Council representative on the Lee Valley Regional Park. 
Councillor R Gadsby declared that her interest was not prejudicial and indicated that 
she would remain in the meeting during the consideration of the item and voting 
thereon:

 EPF/2474/15 Park Farm Nursery, Sewardstone Road, Waltham Abbey E4 
7RG

(c) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor S Stavrou 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of 
being the local ward member. Councillor S Stavrou declared that her interest was not 
prejudicial and indicated that she would remain in the meeting during the 
consideration of the item and voting thereon:

 EPF/1820/15 New House Farm, Long Street, Waltham Abbey EN9 3TQ

(d) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor S Stavrou 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the item by virtue of being 
the District Council representative on the Lee Valley Regional Park Authority. 
Councillor S Stavrou declared that her interest was not prejudicial and indicated that 
she would remain in the meeting during the consideration of the item and voting 
thereon:

 EPF/2474/15 Park Farm Nursery, Sewardstone Road, Waltham Abbey E4 
7RG

(e) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Y Knight 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item by virtue of being the local 
ward member and living in the vicinity of the application. Councillor Y Knight declared 
that her interest was not prejudicial and indicated that she would remain in the 
meeting during the consideration of the item and voting thereon:

 EPF/2009/15 Land off St Leonards Road, Nazeing EN9 2HN

30. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

It was reported that there was no urgent business for consideration at the meeting.

31. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 

The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission.

RESOLVED:

That, Planning applications numbered 1 – 6 be determined as set out in the 
annex to these minutes.

32. PROBITY IN PLANNING - APPEAL DECISIONS 

The Sub-Committee received a report regarding Probity in Planning – Appeal 
Decisions 1 April to 30 September 2015.

In compliance with the recommendation of the District Auditor, the report advised the 
decision making committees of the results of all successful allowed appeals. The 



Area Planning Sub-Committee West 18 November 2015

3

purpose was to inform the Sub-Committee of the consequences of their decisions in 
this respect and in cases where the refusal was found unsupportable on planning 
grounds, an award of costs could be made against the Council.

Since 2011/12, there had been two local indicators, one measured all planning 
application type appeals as a result of committee reversals of officer 
recommendations, the other measured the performance of officer recommendations 
and delegated decisions.

Performance

Over the six month period between 1 March 2015 and 30 September 2015, the 
Council received 39 decisions on appeals (32 were planning related appeals, the 
other 7 were enforcement related). From the 32 planning related appeals, 12 were 
allowed (37.5%).

The appeal performance in regard to committee reversals was on target at 50%. Out 
of 7 enforcement notice appeals decided 5 were dismissed, 1 allowed with variation 
of conditions and the other quashed for invalidity.

Conclusions

Whilst performance in defending appeals at 37.5% appeared high, there was no 
national comparison of authority performance. Members were reminded that in 
refusing planning permission there needed to be justified reasons in each case which 
must be relevant, necessary and sound in terms of constructing an effective defence 
at appeal to avoid paying costs. It was advised that this was more important 
currently, as a Planning Inspector or the Secretary of State, could award costs even if 
neither side had made an application for them.

It was noted that there were two appeals lodged in respect of decisions made by 
Area Plans West Sub-Committee, however they were both dismissed.

RESOLVED:

That the probity in Planning – Appeal Decisions 1 April 2015 to 30 September 
2015 report be noted.

CHAIRMAN





Report Item No:1

APPLICATION No: EPF/1690/15

SITE ADDRESS: St Leonards Farm
St Leonards Road
Nazeing
Waltham Abbey
Essex
EN9 2HG

PARISH: Nazeing

WARD: Lower Nazeing

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Re-siting of approved dwellings, removal of bay windows and 
single storey lean-to and change of window and door openings. 
(amended application to EPF/1908/13)

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=577676

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved Location Plan and drawing no: 2909/1B

2 The types and colours of the external finishes and the extent of the residential 
curtilages of the properties shall be implemented in accordance with the details 
previously approved under application EPF/1488/13, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

3 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part 1, Class A and B shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of the 
Local Planning Authority.

4 The proposed use of this site has been identified as being particularly vulnerable if 
land contamination is present, despite no specific former potentially contaminating 
uses having been identified for this site.  

Should any discoloured or odorous soils be encountered during development works 
or should any hazardous materials or significant quantities of non-soil forming 
materials be found, then all development works should be stopped, the Local 
Planning Authority contacted and a scheme to investigate the risks and / or the 
adoption of any required remedial measures be submitted to, agreed and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the recommencement of 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=577676


development works.

Following the completion of development works and prior to the first occupation of 
the site, sufficient information must be submitted to demonstrate that any required 
remedial measures were satisfactorily implemented or confirmation provided that no 
unexpected contamination was encountered.



Report Item No:2

APPLICATION No: EPF/1820/15

SITE ADDRESS: New House Farm
Long Street
Waltham Abbey
Essex
EN9 3TQ

PARISH: Waltham Abbey

WARD: Waltham Abbey High Beach

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

(i) Two storey side and rear extension and demolition of existing 
conservatory to southern elevation to form new re-modelled 
dwelling (ii) removal of pool building and garage bay (iii) closing of 
existing vehicle crossover and provision of new vehicle access (iv) 
extension to existing garage range (v) relinquish previous ancillary 
residential permission and link granted under EPF/1773/13 and 
permission for covered parking area under EPF/0467/15.

DECISION: Granted Permission (with conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=577948

Conditions:
1. The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 

three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with 
the approved drawings nos: 1598 1-11.

3 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order 
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no development generally 
permitted by virtue of Class A-E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order  shall be 
undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

4 All buildings indicated to be removed on plan 1598.2 to be removed prior to the 
first occupation of the rebuilt house.

5 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and 
Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=577948


6 No previous unimplemented planning permissions to be implemented; for the 
avoidance of doubt these are EPF/1773/13 & EPF/0467/15.

7 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

8 The proposed use of this site has been identified as being particularly vulnerable if 
land contamination is present, despite no specific former potentially contaminating 
uses having been identified for this site.  

Should any discoloured or odorous soils be encountered during development 
works or should any hazardous materials or significant quantities of non-soil 
forming materials be found, then all development works should be stopped, the 
Local Planning Authority contacted and a scheme to investigate the risks and / or 
the adoption of any required remedial measures be submitted to, agreed and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the recommencement 
of development works.

Following the completion of development works and prior to the first occupation of 
the site, sufficient information must be submitted to demonstrate that any required 
remedial measures were satisfactorily implemented or confirmation provided that 
no unexpected contamination was encountered.

9 No development shall take place until details of levels have been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing cross-sections and elevations 
of the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground 
floor slabs of buildings, roadways and accessways and landscaped areas. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details.

10 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used 
to clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

Committee granted permission overturning the officers recommendation. They did not regard the 
proposed extensions are disproportionate when the removal of other buildings and giving up of 
extant planning permissions where taken into account. 

123

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2009/15

Site Name: Land off St Leonards Road, 
Nazeing, EN9 2HN

Scale of Plot: 1/5000



Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/2009/15

SITE ADDRESS: Land off St Leonards Road 
Nazeing 
Essex 
EN9 2HN

PARISH: Nazeing

WARD: Lower Nazeing

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Construction of 7no. 2-bed, 26no. 3-bed, 9no. 4-bed and 3no. 5-
bed houses (45 dwellings in total, including 18 affordable homes), 
with associated off street parking and amenity space; construction 
of multi-purpose hall with associated sports pitch and car parking; 
new access onto St Leonards Road; drop off/pick up car parking 
for Primary School; and landscaping

DECISION: Refused Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=578373

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The proposal represents inappropriate development in the Metropolitan Green Belt 
which by definition is harmful to the objectives of including land in the Green Belt 
and is therefore at odds with Government advice contained in the NPPF and policy 
GB2A of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations for which no very special 
circumstances sufficient to outweigh the very significant harm to the openness of the 
area and any other harm have been demonstrated.

2 The proposal would result in an unsustainable form of development outside existing 
urban areas and is not well served by public transport or local services, and would 
therefore result in an increase in reliance on private motor vehicles contrary to the 
guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework and policies 
CP1, CP3, CP6 and CP9 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations.

3 Insufficient information has been submitted in order to make an informed decision on 
the impact of the proposed development on the landscape at this location. The 
levels plans do not cover the whole site, no contour plans have been submitted 
(existing and proposed showing level changes and a ground Remodelling Proforma 
are necessary. It has not therefore been demonstrated that the proposed 
development would conserve, enhance or respect the character of the landscape 
contrary to policies LL1 and LL2 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations and 
national guidance in the NPPF. 

4 Notwithstanding the above reason to refuse consent and based on the submitted 
information it is considered that the proposed development would have a detrimental 
impact on the character and appearance of the countryside for which no special 
demonstration of need has been put forward. The proposed development is 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=578373


therefore contrary to Local Plan and Alterations policies LL1, LL2 and LL10 and 
national guidance in the NPPF. 

5 The proposed mix of housing would result in an unsatisfactory blend of affordable 
and market housing with the majority of smaller units affordable. The proposed 
development is therefore contrary to national guidance and Local Plan and 
Alterations policy H7A. 



Report Item No:4

APPLICATION No: EPF/2051/15

SITE ADDRESS: Villa Nursery 
Reeves Lane 
Roydon 
Harlow 
Essex
CM19 5LE

PARISH: Roydon

WARD: Broadley Common, Epping Upland and Nazeing

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

The development comprises the installation of a Green Energy 
Centre incorporating a 1.65 MWth biomass boiler burning Grade A 
recycled wood chip fuel to provide the baseload space heating 
requirements of the glasshouses at the Villa Nursery site, in 
addition to 118 kWe of renewable electricity for export to the 
National Grid.

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=578461

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed in accordance with the 
approved drawings No's: 1522B015: - SL R00, SL R01, OA R02 and the submitted 
location and block plan

3 Any deliveries in connection with the use shall only take place between the hours of 
08;00 - 18:00 Monday to Friday, and 08:00 to 12 noon Saturday, unless otherwise 
agreed by the Local Planning Authority. 

4 The use for wood burning hereby granted in the building shall cease if the 
horticultural use ceases.

5 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=578461


6 No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

7 An assessment of flood risk, focussing on surface water drainage, shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement 
of the development. 



Report Item No:5

APPLICATION No: EPF/2121/15

SITE ADDRESS: The White House
Epping Green
Epping
Essex
CM16 6PU

PARISH: Epping Upland

WARD: Broadley Common, Epping Upland and Nazeing

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Erection of single dwelling, detached garage within the curtilage of 
the existing dwelling, including ancillary works.

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=578594

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved Location Plan and drawing no: 2972/1

3 No development shall take place until details of surface water disposal have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

4 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=578594


Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

5 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - recommendations) covering the entire site, including that outlined 
in blue on the approved Location Plan, has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation.

6 Before any preparatory demolition or construction works commence on site, full 
ecological surveys and a mitigation strategy for the site shall be submitted to the 
Local Planning Authority for agreement in writing with a working methodology for site 
clearance and construction work to minimise impact on any protected species and 
nesting birds. Development shall be undertaken only in accordance with the agreed 
strategy and methodology.

7 No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation 
of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of 
investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved in writing by 
the Planning Authority.

8 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of 
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and 
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice 
tool. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial completion 
of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance with the 
management and maintenance plan.

9 The proposed use of this site has been identified as being particularly vulnerable if 
land contamination is present, despite no specific former potentially contaminating 
uses having been identified for this site.  

Should any discoloured or odorous soils be encountered during development works 
or should any hazardous materials or significant quantities of non-soil forming 
materials be found, then all development works should be stopped, the Local 
Planning Authority contacted and a scheme to investigate the risks and / or the 
adoption of any required remedial measures be submitted to, agreed and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the recommencement of 
development works.

Following the completion of development works and prior to the first occupation of 
the site, sufficient information must be submitted to demonstrate that any required 
remedial measures were satisfactorily implemented or confirmation provided that no 
unexpected contamination was encountered.



10 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

11 Prior to first occupation of proposed development, the proposed private drive shall 
be constructed to a width of 5.5 metres for at least the first 6 metres from the back of 
the carriageway and provided with an appropriate dropped kerb crossing of the 
verge.

12 Prior to commencement of the development details showing the means to prevent 
the discharge of surface water from the development onto the highway shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
scheme shall be carried out in its entirety prior to the access becoming operational 
and shall be retained at all times.

13 No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access 
within 6 metres of the highway boundary.

14 Any gates provided at the vehicular access shall be inward opening only and shall 
be set back a minimum of 6 metres from the back edge of the carriageway.



Report Item No:6

APPLICATION No: EPF/2474/15

SITE ADDRESS: Park Farm Nursery 
Sewardstone Road 
Waltham Abbey 
Essex 
E4 7RG

PARISH: Waltham Abbey

WARD: Waltham Abbey High Beach

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Erection of radio transmitter, comprising pole borne antenna, 
tuning equipment cabinet, steel cabin to house transmitter and 
associated equipment.

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579473

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: PR1, PR2, PR4, PR5, PR7 Rev: A, the aerial photograph 
site plan, and the Root Protection Areas plan.

3 No excavations within the calculated root protection areas of the trees on site shall 
be cut or laid otherwise than in accordance with BS5837:2012 (Trees in relation to 
design, demolition and construction - Recommendations), except with the approval 
of the local planning authority.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579473


AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘WEST’

20 January 2016

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION
OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION

PAGE

1.

EPF/1593/15 6 Carters Lane 
Epping Green 
Epping 
Essex
CM16 6QJ

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)
26

2.

EPF/2133/15 3 Green Close 
Epping Green
Epping 
Essex
CM16 6PS

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)
32

3.

EPF/2445/15 Red Roofs 
Low Hill Road 
Roydon 
Harlow
Essex
CM19 5JN

Grant Permission 

(Subject to Legal 

Agreement)

36

4.

EPF/2523/15 Emerald 
Riverside Avenue 
Nazeing 
Essex 
EN10 6RD

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)
42

5.

EPF/2586/15 Di Rosa Garden Centre 
Tylers Road 
Roydon 
Harlow 
Essex
CM19 5LJ

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)
46

6.

EPF/2777/15 The Briars 
Old House Lane 
Roydon 
Harlow 
Essex
CM19 5DN

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)
54

7.

EPF/2809/15 Dallance Farm 
Breach Barns Lane 
Waltham Abbey 
Essex 
EN9 2AD

Refuse Permission 62



123

 

104.2m
104.2m

99.4m99.4m

Midway

Newfields

Clevedon

Conifers

Tudor Rose

Close

Fairbourne Lodge

Lindum

4

Elm Croft

Noelms

1

1

4

7

Nevin

Epping Upland

Chestnut Cottage

Primary School

1

Shelter

39

6

41

40

2

41

32

28

36

29

24

46

33

30

18

37

38

14

7

9

13

19

Cottage

Three Gates

Rose Bungalow

Eden

Three Gates

Cottage
Greenleaf

Rose Bungalow

Eden
Greenleaf

Highlands

Hebrides
The

Highlands

The
Hebrides

Uplands
W

averley

1

2

8

W
averley

1

2

8

Uplands

Lincombe

Plashetts

Lincombe

Plashetts

Goodrington

Cairnsmore

Greenway

Long View

Cairnsmore

Greenway

Goodrington

Long View

Newfields

Tudor Rose

Conifers

Midway

Clevedon

Lindum

22

Fairbourne Lodge
4

Elm Croft

Close

Noelms

Shelter

4
1

1

4

7

Chestnut Cottage

Primary School

C of EC of E

Nevin

Epping Upland

1

39

36

41

40

46

33

18

28

30

19

38

7

37

32
29

24

1

6

2

14

9

13

C
H

E
S

T
N

U
T

 W
A

LK

PUMP LANE

C
H

E
S

T
N

U
T

 W
A

LK

CARTERS LANE

B
 181

PUMP LANE

CARTERS LANE

B
 181

GREEN CLOSE

GREEN CLOSE

Drain
Drain

Pump

LB

El Sub Sta

TCB

Pump

El Sub Sta

TCB

LB

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 1

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/1593/15

Site Name: 6 Carters Lane, Epping Green, 
Epping, CM16 6QJ

Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/1593/15

SITE ADDRESS: 6 Carters Lane 
Epping Green 
Epping 
Essex
CM16 6QJ

PARISH: Epping Upland

WARD: Broadley Common, Epping Upland and Nazeing

APPLICANT: Mrs Sarah Duckett

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Proposed hip to gable roof extension, with rear dormer window, 
single storey side extension and single storey rear extension.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=577436

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A. (g))

Description of site

Carters Lane is located within the small settlement of Epping Green. The existing building is a 
semi detached two storey dwelling situated within a long plot, which mirrors that of the adjacent 
neighbours. The application site is not located within the boundaries of the Metropolitan Green Belt 
and it is not in a conservation area. 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=577436


Description of proposal

The proposed development is for a single storey front, side and rear extension, rear dormer 
window and a hip to gable roof extension.
 
Relevant History

EPF/2715/13 – single storey front and rear extension – Approved

EPF/2715/13 – Single storey front and rear extension  (revised application) - Approved

Policies Applied

CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
DBE10 – Design of residential extensions
DBE2 – Effects to Adjoining Properties
DBE9 – Loss of Amenity

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 214 states that due weight should be given to the relevant policies in existing 
plans according to the degree of consistency with the framework. The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight

Consultation carried out and summary of representations received  

5 Neighbours consulted – 

Noelms – OBJECTION – The loft conversion is excessively large and would appear incongruous 
within the roof slope. The windows will cause significant overlooking and would alter the character 
of the street scene. 

Epping Green Parish Council – OBJECTION - Excessive overdevelopment of the site. There is 
concern as to the size of the extensions in relation to the original footprint of the property. The 
development is inappropriate in the area. 

Effect on street scene – front of extension would be out of keeping with the rest of the properties, 
would be asymmetrical with paired property and loss of front garden.

Loss of car parking – extension at front would take away existing off street parking. There are 
existing major parking issues in the road due to the proximity of the school. 

Loss of light amenity to neighbouring property, no.4; effect of both front and rear extensions. 

Issues and considerations

The main issues to consider when assessing this application are the potential impacts on the living 
conditions of the neighbours, the design of the proposal in relation to the existing building and its 
setting and any parking issues. 

Living conditions of neighbours

The proposed rear extension will be set on the shared boundary with no.4 and will project 6m from 
the existing rear elevation and will have a height of 3m. Although the boundary treatment between 
the two properties is relatively low, no.4 has a very long garden some 40m long and there is no 
regular neighbour located to the east. As a result the attractive open outlook to the rear that no.4 



currently enjoys will not be compromised by the extension given its reasonable height and 
projection. Furthermore, weight must be given to the fact that planning permission has already 
been granted for a 4m deep single storey rear extension, to which this application will add a further 
2m, which is not a substantial increase over what could already been erected.

The rear extension is set 1.2m from the shared boundary with the other adjacent neighbour and as 
a result will not cause any harm to their living conditions. 

The side extension will be set against the side elevation of no.8 and will then project approximately 
3m past its front elevation. Given that the extension is single storey and the net projection is not 
excessive, there will be no significant loss of light to the neighbour and it will not appear 
overbearing. 

The front extension will project approximately 3m from the existing front elevation and will be set 
on the shared boundary with no.4. Its single storey height and reasonable projection will not cause 
any significant harm to their living conditions. The front extension has already been approved 
under reference EPF/2715/13 and therefore it does not require further assessment in this report. 

The hip to gable roof extension will not cause any harm to neighbours as it is set against the side 
elevation of no.8. 

Rear dormer windows are generally accepted forms of residential development. Indeed the 
majority of rear dormers are permitted development and as a result the Government views them 
as developments which do not cause excessive harm to the living conditions of neighbours. The 
application property has full permitted development rights and therefore a rear dormer window 
could be built without planning permission. Nevertheless planning permission has been sought 
and in this case it is set a significant distance from neighbouring dwellings and is orientated away 
from Lindum Close, Noelms and Elm Croft. Consequently it will cause no significant overlooking to 
any neighbours. 

Design

The rear extension will not be visible from public areas of the street scene but is nevertheless 
conventionally designed and will therefore not cause any harm to its character or appearance. 

The side and front extensions are conventional and would not appear overly prominent in the 
street scene. Furthermore front extensions are not uncommon along Carters Lane and as a result 
it will not appear discordant within the street scene.

The rear dormer window, although large will be on the rear elevation of the property and therefore 
will not cause any harm to the character or appearance of the street scene. The hip to gable roof 
extension is a common residential feature and will not cause any visual harm.

Parking considerations

The front extension will leave approximately 5m from the edge of the public carriageway for the 
parking of cars, which is sufficient space for off street parking and consequently there will be no 
harm to the existing parking arrangements. 

Conclusion

The extension will not harm the living conditions of the neighbours and the design is acceptable. 
Therefore it is recommended that planning permission is granted. 



Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: James Rogers
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564 371

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK



123

 

104.2m
104.2m

15 Kings

Midway

Newfields

Clevedon

Conifers

Cottages

Tudor Rose

Close

Fairbourne Lodge

Lindum

4

Elm Croft

Noelms

1

Shelter

39

6

41

40
2

Saxons

Mellis

41

Mellis

32

28

36

29

24

46

33

8

26

1

7

27

26

8

7

27

37

38

14

7

9

13

19

22
1

44

22

23

1

44

23

7

2

7

2

Newfields

Tudor Rose

Conifers

Kings

Midway

Clevedon

Lindum

Fairbourne Lodge
4

Elm Croft

Close

Noelms

Shelter

Saxons
Cottages

4
1

39

36

41

40

46

33

28

19

38

7

37

32
29

24

1

6

2

14

1

9

13

15

ELM CLOSE

GREEN CLOSE

ELM CLOSE

GREEN CLOSE

Pond

Drain

Pond

Drain

Allotment Gardens

LB

El Sub Sta

TCB

El Sub Sta

TCB

Allotment Gardens

LB

Epping GreenEpping GreenEFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 2

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2133/15

Site Name: 3 Green Close, Epping Green, 
Epping, CM16 6PS

Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/2133/15

SITE ADDRESS: 3 Green Close 
Epping Green
Epping 
Essex
CM16 6PS

PARISH: Epping Upland

WARD: Broadley Common, Epping Upland and Nazeing

APPLICANT: Mrs Emma Marchant

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

To convert existing garage into a child's playroom

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=578635

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A. (g))

Description of site

The application site is located on Green Close within the settlement of Epping Green. The existing 
building is a two storey semi detached property situated within a relatively large plot. The building 
currently has a single storey attached garage to the north, however its size prevents it from being 
used for the parking of vehicles. Green Close has unrestricted parking and it is often relatively 
heavily parked, however the site does have some driveway parking on the front elevation. The 
application site is not located within the boundaries of the Metropolitan Green Belt and it is not in a 
conservation area. Permitted development rights for conversion of the garage into a habitable 
room have been removed. 

Description of proposal

The proposed development is to covert the garage into habitable accommodation. 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=578635


Relevant history 

No relevant history 

Policies Applied

CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
DBE10 – Design of residential extensions
DBE2 – Effects to Adjoining Properties
DBE9 – Loss of Amenity
ST6 – Vehicle Parking

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 214 states that due weight should be given to the relevant policies in existing 
plans according to the degree of consistency with the framework. The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight

Consultation carried out and summary of representations received  

3 Neighbours consulted – NO COMMENTS RECEIVED 
Epping Upland Parish Council – OBJECTION – Loss of garage reduces off road parking in an area 
where the Council already receives many complaints about parking issues, it appears to be just 
another room as the features shown on the plan are not consistent with a child’s play room. 

Issues and considerations 

The development does not propose any material alterations to the external appearance of the 
dwelling (the garage door will remain in place) and as a result it will not harm the character or 
appearance of the street scene or the living conditions of the neighbours. Therefore the main issue 
to consider is whether the development will harm the existing parking situation. 
Green Close is often parked relatively heavily, particularly during peak hours and there are no 
parking restrictions on the road. Whilst the loss of a garage used for the parking of cars would 
cause harm to this existing situation on Green Close, the size of the garage in question is too 
small for the parking of a car and is therefore not currently used as such by the current owners. 
Furthermore the driveway offers enough space for the parking of a car and there is a significant 
amount of unrestricted parking on the nearby Epping Road. Consequently the conversion of the 
garage into a habitable room will not cause significant harm to the existing parking situation. 

Conclusion

The garage conversion will not cause any significant harm and therefore it is recommended that 
planning permission is granted. 

 Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: James Rogers
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564 371

or if no direct contact can be made please email:  contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK



123

 

71.9m71.9m

68.6m

66.8m

68.6m

66.8m

Cornwood

Woodlands

Alvand

Lodge
Kingsmead

East

Mor

Red Roofs
Cymru

Chy-

Applewood

Riding

Oaklea

Appleby

100

Threeways

1

Barford

Littlemore

El Sub Sta

Crossways

88

Restharrow

Woodlands

Lodge

Cornwood

Kingsmead

Alvand

Deerhurst

East

Mor

Cymru

Appleby

Chy-

Applewood

Oaklea

Riding

RestawhileRestawhile

LOW HILL HOUSE

Deerhurst

LOW HILL HOUSE

Red Roofs

Barford

Oaklands

Littlemore

100

Crossways

Threeways

Oaklands

1

El Sub Sta

88

White Cottage

Long Meadow

Green Acres

White Cottage

Restharrow

Long Meadow

Green Acres

WOODREDON CL

LO
W

 H
IL

L 
RO

AD

WOODREDON CL

LO
W

 H
IL

L 
RO

AD

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 3

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2445/15

Site Name: Red Roofs, Low Hill Road, Roydon, 
Harlow, CM19 5JN

Scale of Plot: 1/2500



Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/2445/15

SITE ADDRESS: Red Roofs 
Low Hill Road 
Roydon 
Harlow
Essex
CM19 5JN

PARISH: Roydon

WARD: Roydon

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Cioffi

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Erection of a new double garage with store room.  

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (Subject to Legal Agreement)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579396

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

3 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provision in any Statutory Instrument 
revoking or re-enacting that Order), the garage hereby approved shall be retained so 
that it is capable of allowing the parking of cars together with any ancillary storage in 
connection with the residential use of the site, and shall at no time be converted into 
a room or used for any other purpose.

 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579396


And the completion by the 27th January 2016 (unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority) of a legal agreement removing the right to implement the earlier 
planning permission (EPF/0957/14 - Erection of a new detached double garage and store 
room).

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g))

Description of Site: 

Red Roofs is located within a cluster of properties close to the junction of Low Hill Road and 
Epping Road. The property is a short walk from the village centre in Roydon. The site is occupied 
by a large detached dwelling and is served by an ancillary building adjacent to the dwelling. This 
benefits from consent to convert to a three bedroom residential annexe. The plot is extensive with 
the garden area to the south of the house having been sub divided as it benefitted from a consent 
for a new dwelling (EPF/2679/13). The site is within the Metropolitan Green Belt. 

Description of Proposal: 

The applicant seeks consent to construct a garage on the rear boundary of the property adjacent 
to the rear garden of a property on Epping Road (Chy-Mor). The building would have a footprint 
measuring 12.0m wide x 6.0m and an eaves level of 2.5m and a ridge level of 4.3m. Parking would 
be provided for two vehicles on the ground floor with an ancillary storage.

A section 106 agreement has been submitted with the proposal which would remove the 
permission for an extant garage permission (Council reference: EPF/0957/14 – see history below).

Relevant History: 

EPO/0536/61 - Details of studio extension – approved 02/01/62
EPF/1228/09 - Erection of a detached house and formation of new vehicular access – 
approved/conditions 02/09/09
EPF/2247/09 - Erection of detached garage with storage/play room above – approved/conditions 
18/01/10
EPF/0750/11 - Removal of a detached house and the erection of a replacement detached house 
and formation of a new vehicular access – approved/conditions 01/06/11
EPF/0255/13 - Erection of garage (revised application) – approved/conditions 02/04/13
EPF/1801/13 - Raising of roof to create additional bedroom and bathrooms – approved/conditions 
28/10/13
EPF/2679/13 - Erection of detached dwelling (amended application to EPF/1228/09) – 
approved/conditions 11/02/14
EPF/0957/14 - Erection of a new detached double garage and store room. Grant Permission (With 
Conditions) – 20/06/14. 
EPF/1354/14 - Alterations and conversion of existing barn to annexe accommodation. Grant 
Permission (With Conditions) – 28/08/14. 
EPF/0793/15 - Erection of a new double garage with store room with a hipped roof including 3 no. 
dormer windows to the front - Refused

Policies Applied: 

CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment 
DBE1 – Design of New Buildings
DBE2/9 – Effect on Neighbouring Properties/Loss of Amenity



DBE4 – Design in the Green Belt
GB2A – Green Belt Constraint
GB7A – Conspicuous Development
ST6 – Vehicle parking

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight. 

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations received:

PARISH COUNCIL: OBJECTION – Overdevelopment in MGB and believe that permission already 
exists for a similar garage development.

14 neighbours consulted: 2 replies received from the same neighbouring occupier. 

Chy-Mor: OBJECTION – Adverse impact on my residential amenity through loss of view; a 
structure the height and size proposed would have a great impact; Noise and disturbance as 
garage right at back of property; if approved would be easy to put in velux windows or dormers 
and convert upper part into living accommodation for the occupiers extended family; disagree with 
previous Case Officer’s view that the proposal would be acceptable if other garage was removed; 
how will the fence be maintained; no notification that the other garage permission has been 
withdrawn; trees have been planted and concern about their future impact.

Issues and Considerations: 

The main issues to consider relate to the sites setting within the Metropolitan Green Belt, character 
and appearance and living conditions. 

Green Belt 

Policy GB2A states that planning permission will not be granted for the use of land or the 
construction of new buildings in the Green Belt unless it is for the purposes of agriculture, 
horticulture, outdoor participatory sport and other uses that will preserve the openness of the 
Green Belt or conflict with the purposes of including land within the Green Belt. 

As stated in the description, the property is served by a reasonably sized outbuilding which has 
permission to raise in height and be converted to annexe accommodation.

Furthermore the site benefits from an extant permission to construct a similar garage towards the 
front of the house. In Green Belt terms the Local Planning Authority (LPA) would have no issue 
with the extant garage being constructed at another location within the site. Whilst there are no 
specific policies addressing outbuildings, the Council tend to take the view that a double garage 
and store to serve a dwelling is a reasonable allowance. 

However the LPA would not wish to see both garages erected due to the combined impact on the 
green belt so a previous application for a detached garage with accommodation in the roofspace 
was refused earlier this year. 

At the time, Officers suggested that as a way forward the applicant could both reduce the height of 
the garage and enter into a Legal Agreement which prevents the construction of the extant garage, 
thus limiting overall impact to an acceptable level. 



This application does just this. Although the garage would be 4.3m in height as opposed to 
approved garage height of 4m, this difference is not considered so material as to request a further 
reduction.

It is therefore considered that erecting this smaller building along with the removal of the 
permission for the already approved garage which can be dealt with by the signing of a S106 
agreement, would not materially impact on the openness of the green belt.

Therefore the proposal would comply with policy GB2A of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations.

Character and Appearance

Policies CP2 and DBE10 seek to ensure that a new development is satisfactory located and is of a 
high standard of design and layout. Furthermore, the appearance of new developments should be 
compatible with the character of the surrounding area.

The overall design of the garage raises no significant issues and it would not appear out of place 
at such a location. 

Therefore the proposal would comply with policies CP2, DBE4 and DBE10 of the adopted Local 
Plan and Alterations.

Living Conditions

Policies DBE2 and DBE9 seeks to ensure that an extension would not result in an excessive loss 
of amenity for neighbouring properties.

Concern has been expressed form the adjacent neighbour that the proposed garage would have 
an excessive impact on amenity. The garage would be tight on the boundary and 4.3m in height. 
Whilst the roof and upper brick courses of the garage would be visible from the rear garden area, it 
is not considered that there would be a serious impact on amenity. Although the rear garden area 
is not extensive, it is reasonably generous (circa 18-20m), and a roof pitching away from the 
boundary would not have an excessive impact. Whilst a gap to the boundary would undoubtedly 
reduce this buildings presence, when viewed from Chy-Mor, in its current location it is not 
excessively unneighbourly and there is no serious loss of outlook not would it appear materially 
overbearing. 

In terms of noise and disturbance, the garage would serve two cars and is sited a sufficient 
distance from the neighbouring dwelling as not to excessively harm the living conditions of the 
objector.

In relation to the objectors concern that velux windows or dormer windows could be added and the 
building converted to residential space, this cannot be considered as part of this application. A 
material change of use to something other than a garage would require planning permission. Furthermore, a 
condition could be attached to any permission that restricts the use of the building for the purpose of parking 
of vehicles and ancillary storage.

With regards to the maintenance of the fence, this is not a material planning consideration. The 
objectors concern regarding the other structure has been considered above and the planting of 
leylandii trees does not form part of this application, however the Case Officer has passed on 
information regarding the High Hedges Act to the objector.



There would be some overshadowing of the garden area of Cymru, which is a relatively shallow 
garden, however this would not have an excessive impact on amenity which is what the policy 
guards against.

Therefore notwithstanding the objection from the neighbouring occupier, the proposal is 
considered acceptable in neighbouring amenity terms and is considered to comply with policies 
DBE2 and DBE9 of the Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006)

Highways

The proposed garage would provide secure off-street parking and has adequate space for several 
cars to park outside of the garage, and therefore this would have no impact on highway safety or 
the level of on-street parking.

Conclusion: 

The proposed development, whilst constituting a detached outbuilding, meets with the general 
principal of appropriate development within the Green Belt (particularly when assessed as a 
‘limited extension’ to the main dwellinghouse) given the submission of a legal agreement removing 
the permission to build the already approved garage. The design is appropriate and there would 
be no detrimental impact on the level of off-street parking provision or highway safety. Although a 
neighbour is concerned at the impact of the garage on her living conditions, it is not considered 
that the harm would be so excessive as to justify a refusal.

Therefore the application complies with the relevant Local Plan policies and is recommended for 
approval.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Steve Andrews
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564337

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 



123

 

24.7m24.7m

C
R

Boro C
onst Bdy

C
o C

onst Bdy

C
R

Boro C
onst Bdy

C
o C

onst Bdy

7

13

Rosehill

24

12
3

12
7

31
29

2

Cala Fornells

1

Two Roods

1

Tanglewood

Pentire

The Falcons

Glencroft

Birches

Achray

Denlea

Cranmore

Greenways

Courtside

Lulworth

The

Leavista

Ashford House

Carne

Linden Lea
Bank

14

Copleys

Andalee

Hollow

Sheltry

Fairways

Salcombe

Lee

Fairlawn

Bel Air

Lilybank

Pump House

Water

West Egg

Tiverton

Glenone

Ecclesbourne

Trelawny

Timberbank

Hoplands

Dunsley

Merrythought

Beechcroft

Meadowbank

Eastlea

Emerald

12
3a

12
3

12
7

12
3a

7

13

2
14

Pump House

1

Cala Fornells

1

Two Roods

Ecclesbourne

Leavista Tanglewood

Achray

Carne

Denlea

Lee

Linden Lea

Bel Air

Water

Fairways

Emerald

Hollow

Dunsley

Bank

Andalee

Sheltry

West Egg

Birches

Cranmore

Greenways

Courtside

Lulworth

The

Tiverton

Fairlawn

Meadowbank

Merrythought

Beechcroft

Salcombe

Eastlea

Lilybank

Glenone

Glencroft

Rosehill

Timberbank

Trelawny

Ashford House

Hoplands

31
29

The Falcons

24

Copleys

Pentire

KEYSERS ROAD

KEYSERS ROAD

G
R

EA
T M

EA
D

O
W

G
R

EA
T M

EA
D

O
W

A
V

EN
U

E

R
IV

ER
SID

E

KEYSERS ROAD

A
V

EN
U

E

R
IV

ER
SID

E

KEYSERS ROAD

R
iver Lea or Lee

R
iver Lea or Lee

Sub Sta

Ppg Stn

El

Tow
ing Path

Path (um
)

El

Ppg Stn

Sub Sta

Tow
ing Path

Path (um
)

Keysers
Estate

Keysers
Estate

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 4

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2523/15

Site Name: Emerald, Riverside Avenue, 
Nazeing, Essex, EN10 6RD

Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No: 4

APPLICATION No: EPF/2523/15

SITE ADDRESS: Emerald 
Riverside Avenue 
Nazeing 
Essex 
EN10 6RD

PARISH: Nazeing

WARD: Lower Nazeing

APPLICANT: Mr Philip Corbisiero

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Two storey rear and side extensions. New first floor level internal 
alterations

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579654

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

3 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A. (g))

Description of site

The application site is located on Riverside Avenue, within the built up area of Nazeing. The 
existing building is a single storey bungalow situated within a relatively large plot. The street scene 
has a mixture of different designs, some single storey bungalows, some chalet bungalows and 
some are two storey dwellings. The site is located within the boundaries of Flood Zone three as 
designated by the Environment Agency, the site is not located within the boundaries of the 
Metropolitan Green Belt and it is not in a conservation area. 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579654


Description of proposal

The proposed development is to erect a first floor above the existing bungalow and to extend it to 
the front side and rear over two storeys. 

Relevant History

EPF/1063/84 - First floor extension – Refused

EPF/0468/95 - Erection of detached garage. - Approved
 
Policies Applied

CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
DBE10 – Design 
DBE9 – Impact on amenity

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 214 states that due weight should be given to the relevant policies in existing 
plans according to the degree of consistency with the framework. The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight

Consultation carried out and summary of representations received

5 Neighbours consulted – 

Leewater – OBJECTION – The development will appear significantly overbearing and cause loss 
of light and privacy to private areas of our property. The development is a rebuild rather than an 
extension and could be done in a way which will not harm our living conditions. 

Nazeing Parish Council – NO OBJECTION – providing that there is obscure glass on any windows 
facing the property to the rear. 

Comments on representations

The Parish Council have not raised an objection on the basis that any rear windows are obscure 
glazed. The District Council Officers do not consider this a reasonable condition to impose and 
therefore an objection is recorded on behalf of Nazeing Parish Council.
 
Issues and considerations

The main issues to consider when assessing this application are the potential impacts on the living 
conditions of the neighbours, the potential impact on the character and appearance of the locality 
and flood risk considerations. 

Neighbouring living conditions

The rear elevation of the extended property will be located adjacent to the existing side elevation 
of Lee Water. The rear building line will not exceed the rear elevation of Lee Water and therefore 
will not be overtly visible from private areas of the dwelling house. Lee Water has a raised decking 
area consequently there will be no significant harm to their living conditions. 



The two storey rear building line will leave approximately 15m from the shared boundary with Bel 
Air, located on Keysers Road to the rear. The distance is sufficient to ensure that the development 
will not appear overbearing or cause a significant loss of light to residents of Bel Air.

The Parish Council have raised concern that the development will cause overlooking of the 
neighbouring property to the rear and as a result have requested that any window on the rear 
elevation is fitted with obscure glass. Whilst the new first floor windows on the rear elevation will 
increase the potential for overlooking Bel Air, due to the orientation of Emerald, views will mainly 
be over its existing side elevation rather than more private garden areas. Furthermore a gap of 
15m is sufficient to ensure that any harm through overlooking will not be excessive. Therefore it is 
considered that it would not be reasonable to impose an obscure glazing condition. 

Design

Riverside Avenue has a very varied character due to the plethora of different dwelling types along 
the road. The two adjacent properties, separated by Keysers Road are two storey properties, the 
adjacent property on its other side is a chalet bungalow and opposite the site are a number of 
single storey bungalows. Consequently the erection of a two storey dwelling on this site will not 
appear overly prominent within the street scene or cause any harm to its character or appearance.  
In terms of its detailed design, the property will have a conventional albeit relatively modern design 
which respects the character of the street scene. 

Flood Risk

The site is located within the boundaries of Flood Zone three and is therefore within the highest 
risk of flooding as designated by the Environment Agency. New development is usually targeted 
away from Flood Zones two and three, however standing advice from the Environment Agency 
states that:

‘Consultation with the Environment Agency is not required for minor development’ 

The Environment Agency helpfully defines what is meant by ‘minor development’ within this 
context, stating that it is for example:
‘Sheds, garages, games rooms etc. within the curtilage of the existing dwelling, in addition to 
physical extensions to the existing dwelling itself. This definition excludes any proposed 
development that would create a separate dwelling within the curtilage of the existing dwelling eg 
subdivision of houses into flats’. 
Therefore residential extensions are included in what falls within ‘minor development’ and 
therefore consultation with the Environment Agency is not required and by implication the 
development is acceptable in flood risk terms. This view is shared by the Land Drainage and 
Water Team of the Council. 

Conclusion 

The development is not contrary to any adopted Local or National policy and therefore it is 
recommended for approval. 

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: James Rogers
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564 371

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk



123

123

 

65.8m65.8m

75.3m75.3m

D
ef

D
ef

Sparlings

Oaklands

Fernhurst

Tank

(PH)

The Black Swan

Bornholme

Sailings

Farm

House

Tylers Cross

Tank

Tanks

Tank

Rosewood

Silverwood Yard

Oakwood

Springfields

ShannonShannonPear Tree Corner

Tank

Tylers Cross

Nursery

Pear Tree Corner

The Cottage

The Leaves

CroftCott

Janda

Greengates

The Leaves

Garden Centre

Di Rosa

Rose Nursery

Di Rosa

Garden Centre

Rose Nursery

Hatherleigh

Avoncrest

Racedale
Hatherleigh

Rosslyn
Racedale

Rosslyn

Avoncrest

TankTank

Tank

Tank

Tank

Tank

Andora LodgeAndora Lodge

Fidges FarmFidges Farm

Sparlings

Oaklands

Fernhurst

Tank

(PH)

The Black Swan

Bornholme

Sailings

Farm

House

Tylers Cross

Tank

Tank

Tank

Tanks

Tylers Cross

Silverwood Yard

Oakwood

Rosewood

Springfields

Nursery

Greengates

The CottageCroftCott

Janda

SILV
ER

W
O

O
D

 C
LO

SE

TY
LE

RS 
ROAD

SILV
ER

W
O

O
D

 C
LO

SE

TY
LE

RS 
ROAD

Drain
Drain

PondPond

PondPond

D
rain

D
rain

ChyChy

LB

Tylerscross

LB

Tylerscross

ChyChy

Chy

Tank

Tank

Chy

Tank

Tank

El Sub StaEl Sub Sta

Tylers Cross

Hadley Nursery

NurseryNursery

Hadley Nursery

Tylers Cross

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 5

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2586/15

Site Name: Di Rosa Garden Centre, Tylers 
Road, Roydon, CM19 5LJ

Scale of Plot: 1/2500



Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No: EPF/2586/15

SITE ADDRESS: Di Rosa Garden Centre 
Tylers Road 
Roydon 
Harlow 
Essex
CM19 5LJ

PARISH: Roydon

WARD: Broadley Common, Epping Upland and Nazeing

APPLICANT: Mr Joe Urso

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Demolition of part of existing glasshouses, erection of building for 
storage of ice cream vans and re-use of retained glasshouses for 
ancillary parking.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579855

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 3560/1, 3560/2, 3560/3, 3560/4, 3560/5

3 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those stated within the submitted application, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

4 The use hereby permitted shall not be operated outside the hours of 10:00 to 20:30 
on Monday to Sundays and Bank Holidays.

5 There shall be no repair works or machined cleaning of the fleet of vehicles or the 
charging of any refrigeration units outside of the new building hereby approved 
without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority. 

6 The rating level of noise emitted from the site shall not exceed 5dB(A) above the 
prevailing background noise level when measured from the edge of the closest 
residential property.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579855


7 Prior to the commencement of the use of the site details of the proposed new hedge 
planting, as shown on Drawing No. 3560/3, shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The hedge shall be planted prior to 
commencement of the use of the site, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. If the hedge dies, becomes diseased or fails to thrive 
within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or 
destroyed, it must be replaced by new planting of the same kind and size and at the 
same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand in 
writing. 

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g))

Description of Proposal:

Consent is being sought to redevelop the site as a transport yard. This would involve the 
demolition of part of the existing glasshouses and its replacement with a new storage building to 
store ice cream vans. The remaining glasshouses would be retained for ancillary parking 
purposes.

Description of Site:

The site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt as part of a ribbon of development on Tyler’s 
Road. The site contains a parking area to the front and large green house building. There is a 
storage building towards the rear of the site and a now lawful residential dwelling with associated 
curtilage beyond this.

Relevant History:

EPF/0416/12 – Retrospective change of use from nursery to garden centre – approved/conditions 
20/04/12

Policies Applied:

CP1 – Achieving sustainable development objectives
CP2 – Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
GB2A – Development in the Green Belt
GB7A – Conspicuous development
GB8A – Change of use or adaptation of buildings
DBE9 – Loss of amenity
ST4 – Road safety
ST6 – Vehicle parking

The above policies form part of the Councils 1998 Local Plan. Following the publication of the 
NPPF, policies from this plan (which was adopted pre-2004) are to be afforded due weight where 
they are consistent with the Framework. The above policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF 
and therefore are afforded full weight.



Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received:

11 neighbouring properties were consulted and a Site Notice was displayed on 20/11/15.

PARISH COUNCIL – Object. There is a considerable lack of detail to this application. There is no 
detail relating to the times of operation and vehicle movements and the building height seems far 
in excess of what is needed for ice-cream vans and would be particularly overbearing. What is the 
ancillary parking to be used for? And there are concerns not only about road access but also the 
possible noise from refrigerated units, particularly overnight, being used to maintain frozen 
products. 

THE COTTAGE, TYLERS ROAD – Object as this is a further infringement of the Green Belt, the 
cumulative impact on the area from this (and other) developments, due to traffic/highway safety 
concerns, and due to possible noise nuisance.

HATHERLEIGH, TYLERS ROAD – Queries the number of vehicles proposed and impact on 
traffic, the number of employees listed, the operating hours and possible noise impact. Also has 
concerns regarding drainage and the proposed hedgerow.

Issues and Considerations:

The key considerations in this application are the impact on the Green Belt, the location of the site, 
the overall design, and the impact on neighbouring residents.

Green Belt:

The application site is located within the Green Belt and whilst it appears that the site is largely 
underused and vacant retrospective planning consent was granted in 2012 for the change of use of 
the horticultural site to a garden centre. As such the current lawful use of this site is as a garden 
centre, which technically falls within use class A1.

The proposed development involves both the replacement of part of the existing greenhouses with 
a new building and the change of use of the remaining glasshouses. Paragraph 89 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework states that “a local planning authority should regard the construction of 
new buildings as inappropriate in Green Belt”, with a list of exceptions to this. This list includes:

Limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed sites 
(brownfield land), whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings), 
which would not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt and the purpose 
of including land within it than the existing development.

The National Planning Policy Framework also states that “the re-use of buildings provided that the 
buildings are of permanent and substantial construction” is not considered to be inappropriate 
provided they “preserve the openness of the Green Belt and do not conflict with the purposes of 
including land in Green Belt”.

Given its lawful use as a garden centre this site constitutes previously developed land. This has 
been proven within the judgement in R. (on the application of Lee Valley Regional Park Authority) 
v Broxbourne BC [2015] EWHC 185 (Admin) which found that former agricultural buildings, 
including glasshouses, which now have a lawful use for a non-agricultural purpose, should be 
treated as previously developed land.



The volume of the existing glasshouses to be demolished are approximately 1,160m³ and the 
volume of the proposed replacement building is 984m³. Likewise the footprint of the existing 
building to be demolished is 426m² whereby that of the proposed building is 264m². Whilst the 
proposed new building would be approximately 1m higher than the existing glasshouses and more 
solid in appearance the reduction of 176m³ in volume and 162m² in footprint nonetheless ensures 
that the proposed development would have a lesser impact on openness than the existing 
buildings on site. In addition to this, due to the location of the site on the edge of the wider Tylers 
Cross Nursery site, whereby much additional built development and commercial and residential 
(gypsy) uses have been permitted, the proposed development would be viewed within the context 
of this site, which would further reduce its impact on the openness of the Green Belt.

The change of use of the retained glasshouses for ancillary parking for the van drivers cars whilst 
out during the day would not conflict with the purposes of including land within the Green Belt and 
therefore would also not constitute inappropriate development.

Location:

The application site is not located within a particularly sustainable location as it is not well served 
by sustainable transport methods or close to local facilities. Nonetheless the existing lawful use of 
the site is as a garden centre, which could result in far greater levels of transport movements than 
the proposed small scale transport yard use.

It is stated by the applicant that the majority of his van drivers live in Harlow and therefore they 
have the option of coming to the site by bus, cycle or on foot, however there can be no guarantee 
that the employees will remain close to the site. Furthermore, due to the lack of footways and 
infrequent nature of the local bus services it is doubtful that many, if any, of the current employees 
would travel to and from the site by sustainable transport methods.

Notwithstanding the above, paragraph 28 of the NPPF states that “planning policies should 
support economic growth in rural areas in order to create jobs and prosperity by taking a positive 
approach to sustainable new development. To promote a strong rural economy, local and 
neighbourhood plans should:

 support the sustainable growth and expansion of all types of business and enterprise in 
rural areas, both through conversion of existing buildings and well-designed new buildings; 
[and]

 promote the development and diversification of agricultural and other land-based rural 
businesses…”

This rural economic development argument has been used and agreed in various nearby 
developments including the following:

 EPF/0108/13 – Tylers Cross Nursery: Change of use of land surrounding glasshouse from 
agricultural to sui generis use as a scaffold and paving storage yard.

 EPF/0109/13 – Tylers Cross Nursery: Change of use of existing agricultural and 
glasshouse store and workshops to B2 use.

 EPF/2416/14 – Bumbles Auto Care, Bumbles Green: Extension of existing workshop 
building and erection of a new workshop.

The proposed use of the site would be as a base to store ice cream vans. The applicant proposes 
to keep his fleet of 12 vans at the site. The traffic generated by the site would consist of the drivers 
arriving by car and leaving in their vans around 10.30-11.00am each day, and returning in the van 
and driving home in the evening between 6.30 and 8.30pm. For the remainder of the day there 
would be little or no traffic.



It is stated that between the clocks going forward in March and back in October the vans are out 
most days. Between mid-February and March and between mid-October and November the vans 
are only out at weekends. The vans do not operate at all for about 3 months over the winter, when 
virtually no traffic movements would take place.

When compared to the lawful retail garden centre use on the site, which would be open to visiting 
members of the public and had the potential for regular vehicle movements throughout the day 
and throughout the year, the proposed development would result in considerably less traffic 
movements that the existing lawful use of the site could generate. Due to this there has been no 
objection received from Essex County Council Highways with regards to either the sustainable 
location of the site or highway traffic/safety concerns.

Design:

The proposed new building would be steel-framed with a shallow pitched roof of about 4.5m to the 
ridge. The walls and roof would be clad with olive green, plastisol coated profiled steel sheeting. 
There would be a single roller shutter door in the side elevation with personnel doors in the side 
and rear elevation. The new building would appear somewhat utilitarian however would be wholly 
in keeping and appropriate to this site and the wider Tylers Cross Nursery area.

New landscaping is proposed along the site frontage to help screen and soften the impact of the 
development. Whilst no details have been received regarding the landscaping this can be dealt 
with by condition.

Amenity considerations:

The application site is located directly adjacent to the now lawful dwelling known as The Leaves. 
Whilst the applicant states that he “intends to buy the adjoining dwelling at ‘The Leaves’ for him 
and his family to live in” this dwelling is not currently owned by the applicant and therefore the 
amenities of the residents of this site must be taken into account. There are further residential 
properties to the north and west of the site.

Concern has been raised with regards to potential noise nuisance, primarily as a result of 
refrigeration units running overnight, however traffic movements, operating hours and any other 
ancillary activities are also material considerations.

The intention is that the fleet of ice cream vans would be stored within the proposed new building 
overnight. This would provide security as well as reducing any potential noise and visual impact as 
a result of storing the vans on the site. It is understood that not all ice cream vans have 
refrigeration units that require charging overnight, however some do. It is not known whether the 
applicant’s current fleet require charging. Nonetheless any such charging would be undertaken 
within the proposed new building, which would ensure that any noise nuisance would be minimal. 
In order to control this a condition could be imposed restricting any vehicle with a refrigeration unit 
being charged overnight to only be done so within the new building. Furthermore a noise level 
condition could also be added to ensure that there is no excessive noise nuisance audible from the 
closest residential property.

With regards to traffic movements, it has been confirmed by Essex County Council Highways that 
the proposed development would result in considerably less traffic movements than the existing 
lawful use. As such any noise nuisance or disturbance as a result of traffic movements would be 
less than would occur if the garden centre were run as lawfully permitted.

The operating hours proposed are 10:00-20:30 Monday to Sunday (including Bank Holidays). This 
is to enable drivers to arrive at the site and leave in their vans around 10:30-11:00 each day and 
returning the vans between 18:30 and 20:30. Whilst the operating hours differ from those of the 



garden centre (conditioned at 08:00-17:00 Monday to Saturday and 09:00-16:00 on Sundays and 
Bank Holidays) the activities on the site would primarily be limited to these two times of the day. 
Furthermore, between mid-February and March and mid-October and November the ice creams 
vans would only be used at weekends, and during three months over winter the ice cream vans 
are not used at all. Due to this, whilst the operating hours would be slightly later into the evening 
(which is somewhat off-set by starting later in the mornings), and the site would be operated for a 
significantly longer period on Sundays and Bank Holidays, the actual level of activity on the site 
would be greatly reduced from the lawful use of the site as a garden centre.

With regards to any ancillary working on the site, whilst not specifically mentioned it is possible 
that ancillary activities may take place on the site, such as minor repair works and cleaning of the 
vans. The garden centre use has a condition stating “no outside storage shall occur at the site, 
other than for the purposes of displaying plants, or for the sale of plants, without the written 
consent of the Local Planning Authority” and it is considered that a similar condition could be 
imposed in this application to ensure that no works to the fleet of vehicles takes place outside of 
the building permitted. This, combined with the noise level condition mentioned above, would 
ensure that there would be no excessive nuisance caused as a result of the proposed 
development.

Response to Parish Council Objection:

The following has been received from the Applicants agent in response to the Parish Council 
comments:

I would like to make the following comments on the Parish Council objection to 
EPF/2586/15:-

“There is no detail relating to the times of operation and vehicle movements”: Please 
see 4.5 to 4.8 of my planning statement. My client clarified to me that the vehicle 
movements are even less than my statement implies as five of the vans are used for 
festivals between June and August where they stay for long periods and therefore do not 
come back to the site for weeks at a time. I am not sure we can be any more detailed than 
we have been. Remember this is an existing access with a planning permission for a retail 
garden centre. 

“The building height seems far in excess of what is needed for ice-cream vans”: You 
can see the photo of the vans in my statement. I don’t think a clearance of 3m at the eaves 
of the building is unreasonable. He has to have a single span building in order to avoid 
posts obstructing the floor area, and the roof pitch is probably about as shallow as we 
could reasonably make it. The building is not as tall as a standard double garage (normally 
about 5.2m).

“What is the ancillary parking to be used for?”: It would be used for the parking of cars 
by the drivers employed by the applicant to operate the vans. This was my idea. My client 
initially wanted to demolish all the glasshouses. But I suggested it would be better to leave 
them up and park staff cars in them out of site.

“Possible noise from refrigerated units, particularly overnight, being used to 
maintain frozen products”: Stock is almost always kept in the vans overnight but there 
may also be a separate chest freezer or two. Whether in the vans or in a separate chest 
freezer the noise is just the same as a normal domestic freezer and there is no possible 
chance of any noise travelling far enough to disturb anyone. This would not be a 
refrigerated building and there would therefore be no refrigeration plant with extract fans, 
which is probably what the parish council fear.



Conclusion:

The application site, due to the previous consent, constitutes previously developed land. Since the 
proposed replacement building would be smaller in both volume and floor area this, plus the 
conversion of the remaining glasshouses, would not constitute ‘inappropriate development’ 
harmful to the openness of the Green Belt. The level of vehicle movements would be considerably 
less than those that would result from the lawful garden centre use of the site and there would be 
less noise nuisance and general disturbance as a result of this, particularly since conditions could 
be imposed to control the activities on the site and the noise levels that they generate. As such it is 
not considered that the proposed development would be detrimental to neighbours amenities. The 
design of the replacement building is considered to be acceptable in this location and additional 
planting is proposed to the front of the site, which would provide screening to the development. As 
such the proposal complies with the guidance contained within the National Planning Policy 
Framework and the relevant Local Plan policies and is therefore recommended for approval.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 



123

 

76.5m76.5m

New

3

View

3

View
New

TankTank

1
Tank

1

RomneyRomney

Tank

Vi
lla

s
5

1 Math
ew

s

The Briars

5
Vi

lla
s

1 Math
ew

s

The Briars

l

Old

2

Briar Wood

House

l

Old

2

Briar Wood

House

Tks

Cata

Tks

Hilary

Cata

Penryn

Hilary

TanfieldTanfield

1

Penryn

2Oakleigh Villas

1

1

2Oakleigh Villas

1

G
am

e Farm
 C

ottage

G
aeta

Polruan

W
oodsedge

G
am

e Farm
 C

ottage

G
aeta

Polruan

W
oodsedge

OLD HOUSE LANE

OLD HOUSE LANE

PondPond

DrainDrain

El

Tank

Sub Sta

Tanks

Tank

Tank

Tank

Tanks

Sub Sta

El

Tank

Tank

Briarwood
Nursery

Briarwood
Nursery

Nursery

Four Acres NurseryFour Acres Nursery

Tanfield
Nursery
Tanfield

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 6

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2777/15

Site Name: The Briars, Old House Lane, 
Roydon, Harlow, CM19 5DN

Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No: 6

APPLICATION No: EPF/2777/15

SITE ADDRESS: The Briars 
Old House Lane 
Roydon 
Harlow 
Essex
CM19 5DN

PARISH: Roydon

WARD: Broadley Common, Epping Upland and Nazeing

APPLICANT: Mr R Morreale

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of larger new dwelling. 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=580296

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 3278/10, 3278/11, 1298.6, 1298.7, 1298.8, 1298.9, 
1298.10, CLS15050001 Rev: 0

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

4 No development shall take place until details of surface water disposal have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order 
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no extensions generally 
permitted by virtue of Class A or B of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall be 
undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=580296


6 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows]

7 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows]

8 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows]



9 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.  

10 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.  

11 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g))

Description of Site:

The application site is located on the northern side of Old House Lane, which is a small built up 
enclave consisting of predominantly residential dwellings and horticultural nurseries. Although 
other commercial uses are evident within the area.

The site currently contains a two storey detached dwelling house bordered on both sides by 
residential properties, to the south (on the opposite side of Old House Lane) by a recently 
converted listed barn that is now residential in use, and to the rear by a horticultural nursery.

The site is located within the Green Belt and opposite, but not within, a conservation area.

Description of Proposal:

Consent is being sought for the demolition of the existing dwelling and the erection of a new 
dwelling. The replacement dwelling would also be a two storey detached property and would reach 
a maximum width of 17m and maximum depth of 12.7m. It would have a hip ended pitched roof to 
a maximum ridge height of 8m and would benefit from both front and rear hip roofed projections.



Relevant History:

EPR/0340/61 – Proposed dwelling – allowed on appeal with no conditions 29/08/61
EPF/1312/78 – extension (cloakroom/toilet and conservatory) – approved 20/10/78

Policies Applied:

CP2 – Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
CP3 – New development
GB2A – Development within the Green Belt
GB15A – Replacement dwellings
DBE1 – Design of new buildings
DBE2 – Effect on neighbouring properties
DBE4 – Design in the Green Belt
DBE9 – Loss of amenity
ST4 – Road safety
ST6 – Vehicle parking
RP3 – Water quality
RP4 – Contaminated land

The above policies form part of the Councils 1998 Local Plan. Following the publication of the 
NPPF, policies from this plan (which was adopted pre-2004) are to be afforded due weight where 
they are consistent with the Framework. The above policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF 
and therefore are afforded full weight.

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received:

11 neighbouring properties were consulted and a Site Notice was displayed on 27/11/15.

PARISH COUNCIL – Object. Overdevelopment and concerns over parking.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The key considerations are the impact on the Green Belt, the overall design, and the effect on 
neighbouring residents.

Green Belt:

The site is in the Metropolitan Green Belt. Paragraph 89 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework states that “a local planning authority should regard the construction of new buildings 
as inappropriate in Green Belt”. Nonetheless a list of exceptions to this is provided. For a proposal 
to be considered ‘not inappropriate’ it must fall within one of exceptions. This list includes:

 the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same use and not 
materially larger than the one it replaces;

 limited infilling in villages, and limited affordable housing for local community needs under 
policies set out in the Local Plan.

The floor area of the existing dwelling on the site equates to some 170m2 and the proposed new 
dwelling would have a floor area of around 360m2. This would equate to a 111% increase in built 



form and as such the proposal would clearly be ‘materially larger’ than the existing dwelling. 
Therefore the development would fail to fall within the first of the above quoted exceptions. 

The applicant argues that as a matter of principle the replacement of an existing dwelling with a 
larger new dwelling is capable of constituting ‘limited infilling’ in certain circumstances since 
infilling involves filling a gap between existing buildings. Infilling of such a gap can be achieved 
either by building a new freestanding development on a vacant plot or by replacing an existing 
building with a larger new building or buildings.

A recent appeal in Sewardstonebury (EPF/0288/13) gives weight to this since the proposal 
involved the demolition of one dwelling and the erection of two dwellings. Despite this appeal 
proposing the demolition and replacement of the existing house the Planning Inspectorate clearly 
stated that “the site is large enough to accommodate the proposed dwelling in a manner that 
would be consistent with the spatial characteristics of the street scene, whilst the design would be 
appropriate to the traditional form and character of existing development. Therefore, allowing for 
the fact that limited infilling in villages is not inappropriate, there would be no significant harm 
either to the open character of the Green Belt or the character and appearance of the area”. As 
such it was concluded that “the proposed development would not constitute inappropriate 
development in the Green Belt”.

In April 2014 planning consent was granted for extensions to the neighbouring property at No. 1 
Matthews Villas (EPF/0472/14). Within the Officers report it was stated that “these additions would 
increase the size of the dwelling by approximately 65%. However in such a location - essentially a 
built-up enclave – an addition of this size is considered acceptable. The building is surrounded on 
three sides by development and visual impact would be fairly minimal.”

As highlighted above, the application site is clearly located in a built-up enclave and is surrounded 
on three sides by residential properties. This is similar to several other ‘limited infill’ approvals and 
as such it is considered that this site would constitute a ‘village’ for the purposes of paragraph 89 of 
the NPPF.

Since there is no requirement for ‘limited infill’ to “not to have a greater impact on the openness of 
the Green Belt and the purpose of including land within it than the existing development” the 
increased size of the proposed new dwelling over the existing dwelling, in Green Belt terms, is not 
a factor in whether the proposal is acceptable or not. As such it is considered that the proposed 
development of this site would not constitute inappropriate development harmful to the Green Belt.

Design:

The proposed new dwelling would replace the existing building with a new dwelling of a similar 
style, albeit to a larger size. The new dwelling would introduce a second hip ended front projection, 
which would provide the dwelling with a more symmetrical appearance, and would extend further 
to the rear at a two storey height.

Whilst significantly larger than the existing house the proposed new dwelling would not appear 
overly prominent within the plot and would be similar in scale to other dwellings within the 
immediate vicinity.

The proposed new dwelling would retain a gap of 1.2m from the western boundary and 3m from 
the eastern boundary and as such would ensure that there is adequate visual separation from the 
neighbouring dwellings.

Amenity considerations:



The proposed new dwelling would not be any higher than the existing house, however it would be 
both deeper and closer to the shared boundaries with the neighbours. Nonetheless there would be 
a distance of 4.5m at its closest point to both adjacent neighbouring dwellings, widening to almost 
8m. The dwelling would not extend beyond the rear wall of No. 1 Matthews Villa and would extend 
approximately 4m beyond the rear of Briar Wood, however due to the distance and orientation of 
the properties it is not considered that the development would be unduly detrimental to the 
amenities of the neighbours.

Other Matters:

Drainage:

The applicant is proposing to dispose of surface water by sustainable drainage system. Further 
details are required regarding this, which can be dealt with by condition.

Contamination:

Records indicate that due to its former use as a horticultural nursery and the presence of an infilled 
watercourse there is the potential for contaminants to be present on the site. Since domestic 
dwellings with gardens are classified as a particularly sensitive use land contaminated risks need 
to be investigated, assessed and, where necessary, remediated by way of conditions.

Parking:

The Parish Council have objected due to concerns over parking, however there is more than 
adequate space within the site to provide an excess of off-street parking provision and all required 
manoeuvrability space.

Conclusion:

The proposed development would constitute a ‘limited infill in an existing village’ and therefore 
does not constitute inappropriate development harmful to the Green Belt. The overall size and 
design of the new dwelling is considered acceptable in this location and there would not be any 
detrimental impact on neighbour’s amenities. As such the proposal complies with the guidance 
contained within the National Planning Policy Framework and the relevant Local Plan policies and 
is therefore recommended for approval.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK



123

 

38.4m38.4m

51.5m

47.2m

51.2m

51.5m

47.2m

51.2m

54.9m54.9m

Dallance Farm

Dallance House

3

1

The Barns

1

Dallance Farm

Dallance House

3

The Barns

G
A

LL
EY

H
IL

L 
R

O
A

D

BREACH BARNS LANE

G
A

LL
EY

H
IL

L 
R

O
A

D

G
A

LL
EY

H
IL

L 
R

O
A

D

BREACH BARNS LANE

G
A

LL
EY

H
IL

L 
R

O
A

D

Pond

Drain

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

Drain

Track
Track

(disused)

Filter Bed

Sludge Beds

Filter Bed

(disused)

(disused)

Sludge Beds

(disused) EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 7

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2809/15

Site Name: Dallance Farm, Breach Barns Lane, 
Waltham Abbey, EN9 2AD

Scale of Plot: 1/2500



Report Item No: 7

APPLICATION No: EPF/2809/15

SITE ADDRESS: Dallance Farm 
Breach Barns Lane 
Waltham Abbey 
Essex 
EN9 2AD

PARISH: Waltham Abbey

WARD: Waltham Abbey North East

APPLICANT: June Yeats

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Revision of application EPF/1605/15 - Demolition of existing barns 
and erection of 2 dwellings and a lodge home.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=580353

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The proposed new dwellings would constitute inappropriate development harmful to 
the openness of the Metropolitan Green Belt. The matters put forward do not 
constitute very special circumstances that clearly outweigh the harm from the 
development and therefore the application is contrary to the guidance contained 
within the National Planning Policy Framework and policies CP2 and GB2A of the 
adopted Local Plan and Alterations.

This application is before this Committee since it has been ‘called in’ by Councillor Stavrou 
(Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, 
Schedule 1, Appendix A.(h))

Description of Site: 

The application site contains a range of large farm structures located within the boundaries of the 
Metropolitan Green Belt. The group includes a bin barn, an open side hay barn, a disused grain 
store and a Dutch Barn. The site is accessed down a long track from Breach Barns Lane.

Description of Proposal: 

The applicant seeks to demolish the bin barn and dutch barn and to erect two detached dwellings 
and a lodge home. The proposed dwellings would have footprints measuring 140m2, 117.6m2 and 
73.9m2 and would consist of a five bed dwelling, a three bed dwelling and a two bed ‘log cabin’ 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=580353


lodge house. The proposed lodge house is stated to be occupied by a worker of the existing feed 
business at Dallance Farm.

The dwellings would be served off of the existing access track and would each benefit from at 
least two off-street parking spaces and an area of amenity space.

Relevant History: 

AGR/EPF/1394/00 - Agricultural determination for erection of new barn building – permission not 
required 29/08/00
EPF/1933/00 - Conversion of barn to form three dwellings – approved/conditions 28/03/01
EPF/1890/01 - Conversion of existing agricultural building to 3 dwellings with associated parking 
and residential curtilage – withdrawn 11/03/02
EPF/2027/02 - Convert existing barn to an equine veterinary surgery – refused 06/12/02
EPF/2330/02 -  Convert existing barn to an equine veterinary surgery – approved/conditions 
04/03/03
EPF/2163/03 - Insertion of part first floor and use for staff quarters and office area in association 
with equine veterinary clinic – approved/conditions 19/01/04
EPF/2977/14 - Application for prior notification for change of use of two agricultural barns to three 
dwellings (Class C3) and associated development – prior approval required and granted 09/02/15
EPF/1605/15 - Conversion of bin barn and hay barn into residential use – approved/conditions 
01/09/15

Policies Applied: 

CP1 - Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives
CP2 - Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
CP3 - New Development
CP5 - Sustainable Building
GB2A - Development in the Green Belt
GB7A - Conspicuous Development
NC4 - Protection of Established Habitat
RP4 - Contaminated Land
DBE1 - Design of New Buildings
DBE2 - Effect on Neighbouring Properties 
DBE4 - Design in the Green Belt
DBE8 - Private Amenity Space
DBE9 - Loss of Amenity
LL1 - Rural Landscape
LL2 - Inappropriate Rural Development
LL10 - Adequacy of Provision for Landscape Retention
LL11 - Landscaping Schemes
ST4 - Road Safety 
ST6 - Vehicle Parking

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight. 

Summary of Representations: 

6 neighbouring properties were consulted and a Site Notice was displayed on 04/12/15.



TOWN COUNCIL – No objection. If committee is minded to grant permission they would like to 
see a condition applied stating that this be used for agricultural use only and that the issues of 
drainage and bin store space be addressed.

Issues and Considerations: 

The key considerations in this application are whether the development is appropriate within the 
Green Belt or generally in this location, the design, and the impact on neighbour’s amenity.

Green Belt:

The application site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt. Paragraph 89 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework states that “a local planning authority should regard the construction of 
new buildings as inappropriate in Green Belt”, however does provide a list of exceptions to this. 
One of these exceptions is “the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same 
use and not materially larger than the one it replaces”.

Whilst consent has been granted for the change of use of two of the existing agricultural barns into 
residential properties this development has not been undertaken and therefore, until the 
development is implemented, the site would continue to be agricultural in use. As such the 
development cannot fall within the exception of a ‘replacement building’ since the proposed new 
building would not be in the same use as that which it replaces. Due to these factors it is not 
considered that the proposed development would fall within this exception to inappropriate 
development that allows for ‘replacement buildings’.

The NPPF states that “inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt and 
should not be approved except in very special circumstances. When considering any planning 
application, local planning authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm to 
the Green Belt. ‘Very special circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green 
Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm, is clearly outweighed by other 
considerations”.

The key consideration put forward by the applicant appears to be with regards to the ‘fallback 
position’ of the previous approval, and the potential permitted development rights to convert the 
buildings. Whilst it is accepted that there is consent to convert two of the existing agricultural 
buildings into two dwellings this approved development relates to the conversion of the existing 
building. It is accepted within the NPPF that the re-use of building in the Green Belt are not 
inappropriate development, whereby the erection of new buildings does constitute inappropriate 
development. Therefore it is not considered that an extant ‘appropriate development’ is in itself 
sufficient enough to outweigh the harm from an inappropriate development.

The second strand of the applicants case is the reduction in built form on the site. The proposed 
new dwellings would result in a total footprint of 331.57m2 and are stated to be no higher than the 
existing barns to be removed. The development would involve the removal of the existing bin barn 
and dutch barn, which are quoted as having a footprint of 439m2. Furthermore the previously 
permitted conversion is stated as totalling a residential floor area of 415.7m2. As such the proposed 
development, despite the hay barn being retained, would result in a 107m2 reduction in footprint 
over the existing buildings on the site and an 84m2 reduction in footprint over the extant residential 
scheme previously granted consent. Whilst the hay barn is to be retained on site it is suggested 
that a condition be imposed to ensure that this building cannot be converted.

In addition the applicant suggests that the proposed new dwellings would be more visually 
appealing than the previously approved conversions. The extant permission allows for the re-
covering of the existing buildings with new external materials and there is no reason that the 



previously permitted scheme would be ‘visually harmful’ to the Green Belt. Therefore little weight is 
attributed to this factor.

Whilst it is accepted that the overall reduction in built form would have a positive impact on the 
openness of the Green Belt that is given some weight in favour of the development, it is not 
considered that this is sufficient enough to outweigh the harm from the proposed inappropriate 
development.

The applicant has also stated that one of the proposed new dwellings would be “a lodge home for 
the manager of the feed business run from the site. If it was felt necessary the lodge could also be 
secured as a rural workers dwelling by way of planning condition”. Since no evidence or additional 
information has been provided with regards to the need for a ‘rural workers dwelling’ on this site 
this matter is given little weight in favour of the proposal.

Due to the above, whilst it is recognised that there would be some reduction in built form on the 
site it is not considered that the stated ‘benefits’ of the proposal would constitute very special 
circumstances sufficient to clearly outweigh the harm from inappropriate development on the site. 
Therefore the proposal is contrary to the guidance contained within the NPPF and the relevant 
Local Plan policies.

Location of development:

Whilst the application site is not located within a particularly sustainable location this would replace 
the existing consent for two dwellings on the site and therefore it is not considered that the 
development would result in a significantly greater impact in terms of sustainability.

Design:

The proposed two storey dwellings have been designed to appear similar to converted barns and, 
in isolation, would not appear harmful to the overall character and appearance of the area. Whilst 
the proposed lodge house would be more residential in appearance this would be relatively low in 
height and located to the rear of the other proposed dwellings. As such this would be viewed within 
the context of the wider site and would not cause any excessive detrimental impact on the 
character and appearance of the area.

Amenity considerations:

Given the location of the proposed dwellings it is not considered that there would be any 
detrimental loss of amenity to nearby residents.

Due to the size of the application site there is ample private amenity space available to exceed the 
Local Plan requirements for the proposed new dwelling.

Other matters:

Contamination:

Due to its farmyard use and the presence of a landfill site within 250m there is the potential for 
contaminants to be present on the site. As this application is for residential development, which is 
a particularly sensitive proposed user, contaminated land investigations and (where necessary) 
remediation will need to be undertaken. However this matter can be dealt with by condition.

Land drainage:



The applicant has no proposal to dispose of foul sewage and is proposing to dispose of surface 
water by soakaway. The geology of the area is predominantly clay and infiltration drainage may 
not be suitable for the site. Therefore additional details are required with regards to foul and 
surface water drainage.

Conclusion:

In light of the above it is not considered that the proposed dwelling would meet the exception of a 
‘replacement building’, nor any other exception as laid out within the NPPF, and therefore the 
proposal would be inappropriate development harmful to the Green Belt. The stated ‘benefits’ of 
the proposal, including the ‘fallback position’ and reduction in built form, are not considered 
sufficient to clearly outweigh the above identified harm and therefore no very special 
circumstances exist in this instance. As such the proposal is contrary to Government Guidance in 
the form of the NPPF and Local Plan policies CP2 and GB2A and therefore the application is 
recommended for refusal.

Is there a way forward?

Since the previously approved prior determination has not been implemented there is currently no 
way forward in terms of replacing these with a new dwelling.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 




	Agenda
	2 Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
	Area Planning Subcommittee West - members photo sheet 15-16

	4 Minutes
	Minutes
	31 Development Control

	7 Development Control

